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SUPERIOR -COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL,
| ’ Plaintiff,

SYNERGY ENTERPRISES, INC., AND
DOES1-20,

Defendants.

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CaseNo.
. CALIFORNIA EX REL. MIRIAM Eerd7a %@@) 9
BARCELLONA INGENITO, ACTING COMPLAINT FOR CIV1 AL TIES
DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF | AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF ‘

(Health and Safety Code § 25201, 25189, and
25189.2)

The People of the State of California ex rel. Miriam Barcellona Ingenito, Acting Director,

Department of Toxic Substances Control (the “Department”), allege the following:

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. Defendant Synergy Enterprises, Inc.

(“Synergy” or “Defendant”), a registered
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hazardous waste transporter, at all times relevant to this Complaint operated an exempt transfer
facility at 28436 Satellite Street, Hayward, Alameda County (the “Facility”). Defendant handles
hazardous waste at the Facility and arranges for it to be transported off-site. The Facility is a
hazardous waste facility under California Health and Safety Code section 25117.1. -

2. While operating the Facility, Defendant violated the California Hazardous Waste
Control Law,‘ Chapter 6.5 of Divlision 20 of the California Health and Safety Code, sections
25100 et seq. (“HWCL”), and its implementing regulations, California Code of Regulations, Title
22, Division 4.5, by handling hazardous waste in an unsafe manner and without complying with
the applicable laws and regulations.

3. The Department hereby seeks civil penalties from and injunctive relief agaiﬁst
Deféndant for its violations of the HWCL and its irhplernénting re gﬁiations.

PLAINTIFF |
4, The Department is a public agency of the State of Califofnia organized and
existing under.'and pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 58000 et seq.

5. Miriam Barcellona Ingenito is the Acting Director of the Depaﬂment.

6. Pursuant to sections 25181 and 25182 of the Health and Safety Code,'the Attorney
Generai of the State of California is authorized, at the request of the Department, to commence an
action in the name of the Peopie for civil penalties and injuncﬁve relief under the HWCL The
Department has asked the Attorney General to apply to this Court for injunctive relief pursuant to
Health and Safety Code sections 25181 ;nd 25184 and for an order imposing civil penalties
pursuant to Health and Safety Code-sections 25189 and/or 25189.2 for violations of the HWCL |
and its implementing regulations by Defendant. |

DEFENDANT

7. The Department is informed and believes, and thereon alieges, that Defendant is a
corporatioﬁ registered to conduct business in the State of California that operétes a hazardous
waste transfer facility at 28436 Satellite Street, Hayward, Alameda County, California.

8. Defeﬁdant is a “person” as defined at Health and Safety Code section 25118.

Further, Defendant was, at all times relevant to this Complaint, a transporter of hazardous waste,
2
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as “transporter” is defined in California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66260.10. The
Department is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that the Facility is located in an area
zoned industrial by the local planning authority. _

9. When reference is made in this Complaint to any a;t of Defendant, such allegation
shall mean that the owners, officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, and representatives
of Defendant did or authorized such acts or recklessly and/or negligently failed and omitted to
adequately or properly supervise, éontrol, or direct Defendant’s employees, representatives, or
agents while engaged in the management, direction, operation, or control of the affairs of
Defendant, and did so while acting within the coufse and scope of their employment or agency.

10. Defendants Does 1-20 are the officers, agents, employees, servants, or others
acting in interest or concert with Defendént; The Department is ignorant of the true names of
defendants sued herein as Does 1-20. “When the names of these defendants have been ascertained,
the Department will seek leave to amend the Complaint,

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

11. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Cal. Const., art. VI, § 10, and Health and
Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a). Venue is proper in this Court under Health and
Safety Code section 251 83 in that the violations took place in Hayward, Alameda County,
California, and the pr1nc1pal ofﬁce of the Defendant in California is in Hayward in Alameda
County.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

12, The State of California has a compfehensive — “cradle to grave” — statutory and
regulatory framework for the generation, handling, treatment, storagé, transport, and disposal of
hazardous wastes. The HWCL’s implementing regulations specify requirements for the tracking,
storage, treatment, and dispoéal of hazardous waste to protect the public from the risks posed by
improper management of hazardous wastes. (Cal. Code Regs tit. 22, § 66260.1 et seq.)

13. The HWCL is the California analogue of the federal Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq. (“RCRA”). ‘Pursuant to both state and federal law, the

Department administers the HWCL in lieu of federal administration of RCRA in California. (See
3
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Health & Saf. Code, § 25101, subd. (d); California: Final Authorization of Revisions to State
Hazardous Waste Management Program, 66 FR 49118 (September 26, 2001).) Federal law

prohibits California from imposing “any requirements less stringent than those authorized under

[RCRAJ.” (42 U.S.C. § 6929.)

14, State law — the HWCL — has a more inclusive definition of hazardous waste than
does federal law. Hazardous wastes that are regulated under California law but not federal law
are known as “non-RCRA hazardoué wastes.” (Health & Saf. Code, § 25117.9.)

15. Persons who store and dispose of hazardous waste are subject to a number of laws
and regulaﬁons, including, but not limited to, Health and Safety Code section 25100 et seq. and
California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66260 et seq. The Department is informed and
believes, and thereon alleges, that Defendant, fdr all times relevant to this Complaint, stored
and/or disposed of hazardous wasté in California, and is therefore subject to.thbse requirements.

16. Hazardous waste transporters are subject to a number of laws and regulations,
including, but not limited to, Health and Safety Code seétion 25160 et seq. and California Code of

Regulations, title 22, Chapter 13 (sections 66263.10 to 66.263.50). The Department is informed

. and believes, and thereon alleges, that Defendant, for all times relevant to this Complaint,

transported hazardous waste and is therefore subjec{ to these requirements in California.
17. Transporters of hazardous waste are exempt from California’s requireménts fora

permit for waste storage when, during the normal course of transportation, they hold the

hazardous waste at one location for six days or less, or 10 days or less for transfer facilities in

areas zoned industrial or agricultural by the local planning authority.
ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITY UNDER THE BWCL
18. The HWCL authorizes the Court to impose civil penalties under two distinct and
alternativé provisions. Section 25189 of the Health and Safety Code creates liability for any
negligent or intentional violétion of the HWCL. Section 25189.2 is a strict liability provisidﬁ,'
which creates liability, on a strict liability basis, for any violaﬁon of the HWCL. Each day of
violation of eéch provision of the HWCL is a separate violation, subject to penalty under Health

and Safety Code sections 25189 or 25189.2.
' 4

COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENALTIES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF




10
11

,12.

13
14
15
16
17
18

19

20
21
2
23
2

25
26
27
28

THE DEPARTMENT’S INSPECTION OF THE FACILITY
19.  Onor about July 26 and 31, 2012, the Department, through its inspectors, conducted a

regulatory inspection of the Facility (the “Inspection™). At the conclusion of the Inspection, the
Department issued a Summary of Violations to Defendant. Mr. Edgar Cuevas, Defendant’s
Operations Manager, signed the Summary of Violations on behalf of Defendant. On November

14, 2012, the Department issued an Inspection Report to Defendant.

~ FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Unauthorized storage and accumulation of hazardous waste)
(Health & Saf. Code, § 25201, subd. (a))
(Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66263.18)

20.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 are realleged as if fully set forth herein.

21.  Health and Safety Code section 2‘5201, subdivision (a), prohibits an owner or |
operator of a transfer facility from storing hazardous waste at the facility unless the owner or
operator has a permit or grant of authorization from the Department. |

22. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66263.18, subdivision (B)(l),

excludes a transfer facility located in an agricultural or industrial zone from the permit

requirements for waste storage when, during the normal course of transportation, hazardous waste
is.held for no more than 10 days at the transfer facility. Where the transporter holds the A
hazardous waste at the transfer facility fqr mb_re than 10 days, it may do so only with a pei*mit or
authorization from the Department.

23.  Based on areview ov'f Defendant’s and the Dep'artment’é records for the years 2010

'~ 2012, Defendant stored hazardous waste (asbestos) at the Facility for more than 10 days on 951

separate instances beginning on or about January 1, 2010. Defendant stored hazardous waste it

transported to the Facility for more than a 10-day period on every day during each of the years

2010 and 2011, and on every day in 2012 until August 8, 2012. This resulted in 951 instances of

storage of hazardous waste without a permit or authorization.
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24, As a registered hazardous waste transporter, Defendant failed to meet the
conditions for an exempt transfer facility set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 22,
section 66263.18, subdivision (b)(1), by transporting hazardous asbestos waste to the Facility and
storing it at the Facility for more than 10 days without a permit or authorization. Failure to
comply with sectiovn 66263.18, subdivision (b)(1), subjects Defendant to the storage requirements
in Health and Safety Code section 25201, subdivision (a). Defendant does not have a permit or
grant of authorization from the Department for on-site storage of hazardous waste.

25. Defendant is liable for civil penalties under Health and Safety Code sections
25189 or 25189.2 for its violations of Health and Safety Code section 25201, subdivision (a), and
Cahforma Code of Regulatlons title 22, section 66263.18.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
~ (Failure to make hazardous waste determination and to
properly label containers of hazardous waste) .
(Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66262.34, subd. (f)(1), 66262.34, subd. (f}(3), and 66262.11)

26. .l Paragraphs 1 through 19 are realleged as if fully set forth herein.

27. | California Code of Regulattons, title 22, section 66262.11, requires a generator of .
waste to make a determination prior to its disposal whether a waste is hazardous or not, using
certain prescr1bed methods |

28. Cahforma Code of Regulations, title 22 section 66262.34, subdivisions (H)(1) and
(H)(3), require generators who accumulate hazardons waste on site without a permit or grant of
interim status to clearly mark, so as to make visible for inspection, all containers of waste with the
words “Hazardous Waste,” and information on the composition and physical 'state of the waste,
the particular hazardous properties of the waste, the name and address of the person producing the
waste, and the date upon which the period of accumulation began.

- 20, Since on and before July 26, 2012, and continuing thereafter, Defendant violated
California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66262.11 and 66262.34, subdivisions (f)(1) and
(£)(3), by failing to conduct waste characterization sampling and make a hazardous waste
determination for the waste in approximately 15 container_s, and by failing to properly label the

containers with the following information: the words “Hazardous Waste,” the composition and
6
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physical state of the waste, the hazard property, the name and address of the generator, and the
accumulation start date.

30.  Defendant is liable for civil penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25189
or 25189.2 for its violations of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66262.11 and
66262.34, subdivisions (f)(1) and ()(3).

REQUEST FOR RELIEF

The Départrnent requests that the Court grant the following relief:

1. Enter judgment that Defendant has violated the HWCL and its implementing
regulations.as described in the First and Second Causes of Action;

2. Enter judgment that Defendant is liable for civil penalties for violations of the

HWCL and its implementing regulations on the First and Second Causes of Action, as authorized

by Health and Safety Code section 25189, or, in the alternative, by Health and Safety Code

section 251 8'9.2, for each day of each violation according to proof;.

3. Grant the Department its costs of suit herein; and
4, Grant such other and further relief as the court deems just and proper.
Dated: July 23,2014 Respectiully Submitted,

KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California
MARGARITA PADILLA .
Supervising Deputy Attorney General

(OFiginaI siéﬁed/By Laura J. Zuckerman

LAURA J. ZUCKERMAN

Deputy Attorney General

Attorneys for Plaintiff People of the State
of California ex rel. Miriam Barcellona
Ingenito, Acting Director of the
Department of Toxic Substances Control
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